
 

1 of 2 
 

 
NOTICE OF CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, 
TEXAS, WILL MEET IN A WORKSHOP SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, October 28, 2014 

 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  City Council Workshop Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and any 
consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. Public comments are 
welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments will be received at a Workshop 
Meeting. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting 
to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Review and discuss the “Dangerous Buildings” Ordinance, and take action as necessary to direct staff. 

(Robert Gracia, City Manager) 
 

2. Review and discuss City Council staggered terms and the order of positions for election, and take action 
as necessary to direct staff. (Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney) 
 

3. Adjournment. 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  



 

2 of 2 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2014, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Christine Krahn, Acting City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need 
of special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
October 28, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

1 “Dangerous Buildings” Ordinance Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss the “Dangerous Buildings” Ordinance, and take action as necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1.  Code of Ordinances Excerpt – Chapter 6, Article IX. – Dangerous Buildings 
2. Texas Municipal League – Substandard Structures after City of Dallas v. Stewart – 02-16-12 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been included to allow City Council an opportunity to discuss possible revisions to the 
“Dangerous Buildings” Ordinance, and to direct staff accordingly. 
 



Page 1 of 8 
 

CODE OF ORDINANCES EXCERPT 
CHAPTER 6 – BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 
ARTICLE IX. - DANGEROUS BUILDINGS  
 
FOOTNOTE(S): 

--- (12) ---  

Cross reference— Fire prevention and protection, Ch. 11; flood prevention and protection, Ch. 12; 
health, sanitation and nuisances, Ch. 14 nuisance abatement, § 14-26 et seq.; rodent control, § 14-50 et 
seq.; manufactured housing, mobile homes and travel trailers and parks, Ch. 17; solid waste, Ch. 23; 
utilities, Ch. 29. (Back) 

Sec. 6-271. - Definitions.  

(a) All buildings or structures which have any or all of the following defects shall be deemed dangerous 
buildings:  

(1) Those which have interior walls or other vertical structural members that list, lean or buckle to 
such an extent that a plumb line passing through the center of gravity falls outside of the middle 
third of its base;  

(2) Those which, exclusive of the foundation, show thirty-three (33) percent or more of damage of 
structural members or fifty (50) percent of damage or deterioration of the nonsupporting 
enclosing or outside walls or covering;  

(3) Those which have improperly distributed loads upon the floors or roofs or in which the same are 
overloaded, or which have insufficient strength to be reasonably safe for the purpose used;  

(4) Those which have been damaged by fire, wind or other causes so as to have become 
dangerous to life, morals or the general health and welfare of the occupants or the people of the 
city;  

(5) Those which are so dilapidated, decayed, unsafe, unsanitary, or which so utterly fail to provide 
the amenities essential to decent living that they are unfit for human habitation or are likely to 
cause sickness or disease so as to work injury to the health, morals, safety or general welfare of 
those occupying such building;  

(6) Those having light, air and sanitation facilities which are inadequate to protect the health, 
morals, safety or general welfare of human beings who live therein;  

(7) Those, regardless of their structural condition, which have, during times that they were not 
actually occupied by their owners, lessees or other invitees, been left unsecured from 
unauthorized entry to the extent that they may be entered and utilized by vagrants or other 
uninvited persons as a place of harborage or may be entered and utilized by children as a play 
area;  

(8) Those which have parts thereof which are so attached that they may fall and injure members of 
the public or property;  

(9) Those which because of their condition are unsafe, unsanitary or dangerous to the health, 
morals, safety or general welfare of the people of this city; and/or  

(10) Those buildings existing in violation of any provisions of this article, the Texas Local 
Government Code, Section 214.001 et seq., the building code, the fire code, or other 
ordinances of this city, if the violation is of such a nature that the building constitutes a danger to 
its occupants and to others.  

(b) A building that is boarded up, fenced or otherwise secured in any manner may, nevertheless, be 
deemed to be a dangerous building under the foregoing criteria if:  

(1) The building constitutes a danger to the public, even though secured from entry; or 



Page 2 of 8 
 

(2) It is found that the means utilized to secure the building are not adequate to prevent 
unauthorized entry of the building in contravention of item (7) of subsection (a) above.  

(c) Any building or structure which has any or all of the conditions or defects described herein, where 
such condition or conditions pose a threat or potential threat to life, health, property, or human 
safety, is also hereby declared to be a public nuisance, and is prohibited as unlawful, and shall be 
abated according to provisions of this Article IX. It is an offense for an owner or occupant or other 
person having control of the building or structure to fail to abate such public nuisance. Therefore, 
failure to abate such condition may also be prosecuted as a criminal misdemeanor offense. It is a 
further offense and it is unlawful for any person to cause, permit, or allow a dangerous building after 
the thirtieth day after the date on which the hearing officer finds a condition of dangerous building, 
nuisance and orders abatement or after such extended date as may be lawfully permitted by the 
hearing officer.  

(d) The city council hereby finds and determines that any building which has any or all of the defects set 
forth in (a) or (b) above is dilapidated, substandard, a nuisance or unfit for human habitation and is a 
hazard to the public health, safety and welfare.  

(Code 1960, § 5-14; Ord. No. 89-22, § 1, 3-21-89; Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-272. - Duties of public works director.  

The planning director or his/her designee shall:  

(1) Inspect any building, wall or structure about which complaints are filed by any person to the 
effect that a building, wall or structure is or may be existing in violation of the terms of this 
article;  

(2) Inspect any building, wall or structure reported (as hereafter provided for) by the fire, health or 
police departments of this city as probably in violation of the terms of this article;  

(3) Inspect buildings in the city to determine whether they are dangerous buildings within the terms 
of Section 6-271;  

(4) Notify the city manager or his/her designee of buildings that are found to be dangerous so that 
hearings may be scheduled pursuant to Section 6-274 et seq.; and  

(5) Appear at all hearings conducted pursuant to Section 6-274 et seq. and testify as to the 
conditions existing in the dangerous building.  

(Code 1960, § 5-15; Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-273. - Duties of city attorney.  

The city attorney may:  

(1) Prosecute any person failing to comply with the terms of the notices and orders provided for in 
this article;  

(2) Appear at hearings before the city manager or his designee in regard to dangerous buildings;  

(3) Bring suit to collect municipal charges, liens, or costs incurred by the city in preparing or 
causing to be vacated or demolished dangerous buildings; or  

(4) Take such other legal action as is necessary to carry out the terms and provisions of this article.  

(Code 1960, § 5-19; Ord. No. 2006-34, § 1, 11-7-06)  

Sec. 6-274. - Hearing—Notice.  

(a) Upon inspection, if a building has been found to be a dangerous building, written notice, by personal 
service or by certified mail, return receipt requested, shall be served on persons having an interest in 
the property, the owner, lienholder, or mortgagee for the property, as shown by the county real 
property records of the county where the land is located; appraisal district records of the appraisal 



Page 3 of 8 
 

district in which the building is located; records of the Secretary of State; assumed name records of 
the county in which the building is located; tax records of the city; and utility records of the city. This 
notice shall inform such persons that a hearing will be held before the city manager or his designated 
representative in which the city will seek an order requiring the building to be vacated, and/or 
requiring the building to be repaired and/or demolished and/or secured upon a finding that the 
building is dangerous and that it constitutes a hazard to the health, safety or welfare of its occupants 
and/or citizens of this city. Such notice shall also set forth:  

(1) The specific conditions which render the building a dangerous building within the standards set 
forth in Section 6-271;  

(2) That a hearing will be held before the city manager or his designated representative in which 
the city will seek an order that the building be vacated and/or that the building also be repaired 
and/or demolished and/or secured as provided in Section 6-276;  

(3) The date, time and place of such hearing; 

(4) That all persons having an interest in the property may appear in person and/or be represented 
by an attorney and may present testimony and may cross examine all witnesses; and  

(5) That all persons having an interest in the property will be required to submit at the hearing proof 
of the scope of any work that may be required to comply with this article and the time it will take 
to reasonably perform the work.  

(b) If the address of any person having an interest in the property is unknown, or if notice to any person 
having an interest in the property is returned undelivered, a copy of such notice shall be posted in a 
conspicuous place on the building found by the city manager or his designee to be dangerous and 
such notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation within the city. The posting and 
publishing of such notice shall constitute notice to any person having an interest in the property who 
does not receive personal notice or notice by mail.  

(Code 1960, § 5-16(a); Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02; Ord. No. 2006-34, § 2, 11-7-06)  

State law reference— Authority of city regarding substandard building, V.T.C.A., Local Government 
Code § 214.001.  

Sec. 6-275. - Same—Conduct.  

(a) All hearings shall be held by the city manager or a person designated by the city manager to conduct 
such hearings. Such official shall be referred to as the hearing officer; provided, however, that the 
city manager shall not designate any person to perform the duties of hearing officer under this 
section who has participated in the inspections of such building or has had prior knowledge of the 
conditions of such building, except such person designated as hearing officer may, prior to the 
hearing, receive a copy of the notice given to the owners.  

(b) All hearings shall be conducted under rules consistent with the nature of the proceedings; provided, 
however, the following rules shall apply to such hearings:  

(1) All parties shall have the right to representation by a licensed attorney, though an attorney is not 
required.  

(2) Each party may present witnesses in his own behalf. 

(3) Each party has the right to cross-examine all witnesses. 

(4) Only evidence presented before the hearing officer at such hearing may be considered in 
rendering the order.  

(5) The person having an interest in the building has the burden of proof to demonstrate the scope 
of any work that may be required to comply with ordinance and the time it will take to 
reasonably perform the work.  



Page 4 of 8 
 

(c) If no person having an interest in the building appears before the hearing officer at the date and time 
specified, the city shall produce evidence showing the building to be a dangerous building within the 
standards set forth in Section 6-271 and that the same constitutes a hazard to the health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens.  

(d) The city may request that public utilities be disconnected in order that demolition or other nuisance 
abatement actions may be accomplished without delay in those cases where the structure is open, 
vacant, dilapidated, or subject to any of the conditions defining dangerous building and public 
nuisance in this article.  

(Code 1960, § 5-16(b), (c); Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02; Ord. No. 2006-34, § 3, 11-7-06)  

Sec. 6-276. - Same—Findings; placards.  

(a) After completion of the presentation of testimony by all parties appearing, the hearing officer shall 
make written findings of fact as to whether or not the buildings are dilapidated, substandard or unfit 
for human habitation and constitute a hazard to the health, safety or welfare of occupants and/or the 
citizens, and whether or not the buildings in question are dangerous within the standards set forth in 
Section 6-271, setting out the underlying facts supporting the findings.  

(b) If the hearing officer finds that any building is dilapidated, substandard or unfit for human habitation 
and that same constitutes a hazard to the health, safety or welfare of its occupants and/or the 
citizens, and that same is a dangerous building within the terms of Section 6-271, he shall issue an 
order directing the owner, occupant and all other persons having an interest in such building, as 
shown by the deed records of the county clerk of the county where the land is located:  

(1) That the building shall be vacated if same is occupied and the hearing officer finds that the 
building is in such condition as to make it dangerous to the health, safety or welfare of its 
occupants;  

(2) That, at the owner's option, the building shall be either demolished or repaired (if it can 
reasonably be brought into compliance by repair);  

(3) That the building shall be demolished if it cannot reasonably be repaired; and/or 

(4) If the building is unoccupied and the condition of the building is such that it may be brought into 
compliance by securing it from unauthorized entry, then the order may provide that it be so 
secured and be kept secured and may include or adopt written specifications that must be 
complied with in securing the building, and the order may provide that the building be 
demolished if it is not secured in compliance therewith.  

(c) If the hearing officer finds that the building is substandard as above described and in such condition 
as to make same dangerous to the health, safety or welfare of its occupants or to the citizens, the 
hearing officer shall order that the city place a notice in a conspicuous place on such building. Such 
notice to have the heading "DANGEROUS BUILDING" in letters one and one-fourth (1¼) inches high 
and to read, in letters at least one and one-fourth (1¼) inches high, the words:  

DANGEROUS BUILDING  

"THIS BUILDING HAS BEEN FOUND TO BE A DANGEROUS BUILDING. OCCUPANCY OF THIS 
BUILDING IS PROHIBITED BY LAW, AS SUCH OCCUPANCY IS DANGEROUS TO THE HEALTH, 
SAFETY OR WELFARE OF ITS OCCUPANTS. THIS NOTICE IS POSTED (here the notice shall set 
forth the date and hour such notice is posted). ALL PERSONS MUST VACATE THIS BUILDING 
NOT LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS AFTER THE TIME OF POSTING AND SHALL 
NOT RE-ENTER THE SAME UNTIL THE PLANNING DIRECTOR FINDS THAT THE BUILDING 
HAS BEEN REPAIRED SO AS TO BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG. THIS NOTICE SHALL REMAIN ON THIS BUILDING UNTIL IT IS REPAIRED OR 
DEMOLISHED."  

(d) If the hearing officer finds that the building is in such condition that it is dangerous for anyone to 
enter, the hearing officer shall order that the city place a notice in a conspicuous place on such 



Page 5 of 8 
 

building. Such notice to have a heading stating DANGEROUS BUILDING in letters at least one and 
one-fourth (1¼) inches high and read in letters at least one and one-fourth (1¼) inches high, the 
words:  

DANGEROUS BUILDING  

"THE PLANNING DIRECTOR OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG HAS FOUND THIS BUILDING TO 
BE A DANGEROUS BUILDING. NO PERSON SHALL ENTER THIS BUILDING EXCEPT 
INSPECTORS OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG AND PERSONS AUTHORIZED BY THE OWNER 
WHO ENTER SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSE OF CORRECTING THE HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS 
THEREIN. THIS NOTICE SHALL REMAIN ON THIS BUILDING UNTIL IT IS REPAIRED OR 
DEMOLISHED."  

(Code 1960, § 5-16(d); Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-277. - Opportunity to bring property into compliance.  

(a) The persons having an interest in the property coming under this article shall be given a reasonable 
period of time in which to comply with the hearing officer's order. Such period not to exceed thirty 
(30) days unless, in the judgment and discretion of the hearing officer, it is determined that a greater 
period of time is necessary. The order shall state the date by which the action ordered must be 
completed and state that the planning director shall cause the building to be vacated, repaired and/or 
demolished if the persons having an interest in the property do not comply with the order.  

(b) The order of the hearing officer shall be served on all persons having an interest in the property, as 
shown on the deed records of the county in which the land lies, by registered mail or certified mail, 
return receipt requested. If the address of a person having an interest in the property as shown on 
the deed records is unknown, or if such order is returned undelivered, a copy of such order shall be 
posted in a conspicuous place on such building. Such posting of the order shall constitute notice to 
any person having an interest in the property who does not receive personal service.  

(c) A copy of the order of the hearing officer shall also be filed in the deed records of the county in which 
the land lies.  

(d) If the persons having an interest in the property fail to comply with the order of the hearing officer 
within the time specified in the order for compliance, the planning director shall cause such building 
to be vacated, repaired and/or demolished as the facts may warrant.  

(e) In any instance in which an order has been issued, pursuant to Section 6-276(b)(4), that a building 
be secured and the owner complies with the order by securing the building, the hearing officer's case 
file shall, nevertheless, remain active for a period of three (3) years from the date of signature of the 
order. The planning director may request that the hearing official reconvene the hearing if he 
receives evidence that the building has not remained secured and is in contravention of Section 6-
271(a)(7) of this Code. Upon notice to the owner, lienholders, occupants and other persons having 
an interest in the property, the hearing officer shall reconvene the hearing. If the hearing officer finds 
that the building remains a dangerous building, notwithstanding the owner's efforts to secure it, 
he/she may issue a revised order that the building be demolished.  

(Code 1960, § 5-16(d)—(f); Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-278. - Charges; lien.  

(a) The city council hereby finds and declares that the general administrative expenses of inspecting 
buildings, locating owners, conducting hearings, issuing notices and orders, together with all 
associated administrative functions, require the reasonable charge of five hundred dollars ($500.00) 
for each lot, adjacent lots under common ownership or tract of land. Such minimum charge is hereby 
established and declared to be the charge for such administrative expenses to be assessed in each 
instance where the hearing officer determines that the building or structure is a dangerous building 
and the city is required to proceed with notice and hearing as provided for in Section 6-274. 
Notwithstanding any tabulation of recorded costs, a charge of five hundred dollars ($500.00) is 



Page 6 of 8 
 

hereby expressly stated to be the minimum charge, unless otherwise determined by the hearing 
officer. Further, the cost of securing, repairing, demolishing the building or buildings, either by the 
city or by persons doing so under contract with the city, shall be separately calculated and assessed 
in each instance where the city demolishes or causes the demolition of a building or buildings 
pursuant to this article.  

(b) The city shall certify all administrative expenses and costs of demolishing a building or buildings by 
the city or by persons doing so under contract with the city, as a charge which shall be assessed the 
owner thereof, and which shall constitute a lien on the land on which the building or buildings are or 
were situated. Such charge shall bear interest at the rate of ten (10) percent per annum until paid.  

(c) If an order has been issued pursuant to this article for the repair or demolition of a building or 
buildings and the city has let a contract for demolition, and the building or buildings are subsequently 
repaired or demolished by the owners prior to completion of the contracts let by the city, the 
administrative expenses and all costs for cancellation of the contract shall be certified as a charge 
which shall be assessed against the owners thereof, and which shall constitute a lien on the land on 
which the building or buildings are or were situated. Such charge shall bear interest at the rate of ten 
(10) percent per annum until paid.  

(Code 1960, § 5-16(g); Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-279. - Execution of release, notice of compliance.  

(a) Upon full payment of the charges assessed against any property, or in the event the lien is placed on 
the property through error, the finance director or his/her designee is hereby authorized to execute, 
for and in behalf of the city, a written release approved in each case by the city attorney.  

(b) Upon compliance with an order of the hearing officer to repair or demolish a building, the planning 
director shall be and is hereby authorized to execute a written "notice of compliance" setting forth the 
date the notice of compliance is issued, the date the building was found to be repaired or demolished 
in compliance with the order; and if the building has not been demolished, whether or not the building 
is in such condition that it may be occupied.  

(c) A fee in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) shall be imposed for such release of lien provided 
hereunder.  

(Code 1960, § 5-17; Ord. No. 94-08, § 3, 4-19-94; Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-280. - Violations.  

(a) The owner of any dangerous building who shall fail to comply with any order to repair, vacate, 
demolish or secure such building by any person authorized by this article to give such order shall be 
guilty of a misdemeanor.  

(b) The occupant or lessee in possession, who fails to comply with any order to vacate, and anyone 
having an interest in such building as shown by the deed records of the county clerk of the county 
where the land is located, and under a legal duty to repair, who fails to repair or secure such building 
in accordance with any order given as provided for in this article, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.  

(c) Any person removing any notice provided in this article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

(d) The penalty upon conviction for violation of this section shall be as provided in Section 1-13 of this 
Code.  

(Code 1960, § 5-18; Ord. No. 90-55, § 2, 9-4-90)  

Sec. 6-281. - Emergencies.  

(a) In cases where it reasonably appears that there is immediate danger to the health, life or safety of 
any person unless a dangerous building is immediately repaired, vacated, demolished or secured, 
the public works director or planning director shall report such facts to the city manager. If the city 
manager finds there is in fact an immediate danger to the health, life or safety of any person unless 



Page 7 of 8 
 

the building is immediately repaired, vacated, demolished or secured, he/she shall cause the 
immediate repair; vacation, demolition or securing of such building.  

(b) Whenever the city manager causes a building to be repaired, vacated, demolished or secured 
pursuant to this section, he shall cause a notice, as described in Section 6-276 to be posted on the 
building.  

(c) Whenever the city manager causes a building to be repaired, vacated, demolished or secured 
pursuant to this section, he/she shall also cause notice to be given that a hearing will be held 
concerning the orders issued in connection therewith, and whether the building constitutes a 
dangerous building. Such notice shall be given to the owners and lienholders of the building, all 
persons having possession of any portion thereof, and all other persons who may have an interest in 
the building. The notice shall set forth the specific conditions which render the building a dangerous 
building within the standards set forth in Section 6-274 et seq., the date, time and place of such 
hearing, that all persons having an interest in the building may appear in person and/or be 
represented by an attorney and may present testimony and may cross examine all witnesses. Such 
notice shall comply with the provisions set out in Section 6-274 et seq.; however, the hearing shall be 
held as soon as it is reasonably possible, but in no case later than ten (10) days, after the city 
manager has caused the building to be repaired, vacated, demolished or secured, unless all persons 
having either an ownership interest or a possessory interest in the building request a continuance of 
the hearing. All such hearings shall be held by the city manager or a person designated by him/her in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 6-274 et seq. At such a hearing, the burden shall be upon 
the city to show that there was an immediate danger to health, life or safety necessitating the 
immediate action and whether the building constitutes a dangerous building within the provisions of 
this article at the time of the hearing.  

(d) After completion of the presentation of the testimony by all parties appearing, the hearing official 
shall make written findings of fact as to whether or not the building was an immediate danger to 
health, life or safety necessitating the action taken by the city manager, and whether the building was 
a dangerous building within the provisions of this article. If the hearing official finds that there was an 
immediate danger to public health, life or safety that required the action that was taken, all 
administrative expenses and any cost of repair or demolition shall be calculated and assessed with 
the owners of the building, and shall constitute a lien on the land on which the building stands or 
stood, which shall bear interest as provided in Section 6-278. If the hearing official finds that the 
building, at the time of the hearing, constitutes a dangerous building within the provisions of this 
article, he shall issue an order for its abatement as set out in Section 6-277(d). The provisions of 
Section 6-274 et seq. shall be applicable to any such order.  

(Code 1960, § 5-20; Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-282. - Where owner absent from city.  

In cases, except emergency cases, where the owner, occupant, lessee or mortgagee is absent from 
the city, all notices or orders provided for herein shall be sent by registered mail or certified mail. Notices 
and/or orders shall be served on persons having an interest in the property, the owner(s), lienholder(s), or 
mortgagee for the property, as shown by the county real property records of the county where the land is 
located; appraisal district records of the appraisal district in which the building is located; records of the 
Secretary of State; assumed name records of the county in which the building is located; tax records of 
the city; and utility records of the city to the owner, occupant, mortgagee, lessee and all other persons 
having an interest in any building coming under this article, as shown by the deed records of the county 
clerk of the county where the land is located, to the last known address of each. A copy of such notice 
shall be posted in a conspicuous place on the dangerous building to which it relates. Such posting and 
mailing shall be deemed adequate service.  

(Code 1960, § 5-21; Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-283. - Duty of city employees to report dangerous buildings.  



Page 8 of 8 
 

It shall be the duty of all city employees to make a report in writing to the planning director of all 
buildings or structures which they believe are, may be or are suspected to be dangerous buildings within 
the terms of this article. Such reports are to be made within a reasonable time after the discovery of such 
buildings or structures.  

(Code 1960, § 5-22; Ord. No. 2002-39, § 2, 11-5-02)  

Sec. 6-284. - Other remedies; Chapters 54 and 214, Texas Local Government Code.  

(a) Nothing is this article shall preclude the city's pursuit of any and all other remedies allowed under the 
civil and criminal statutes, and in equity, to address conditions which are treated in this article, under 
the theory of public nuisance and abatement of dangerous structures or buildings. Neither shall the 
city be required, nor prohibited, to issue criminal citations before, after, or during any proceeding 
prescribed in this article.  

(b) Specifically, in addition to provisions of this article and remedies afforded under the Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 214, Municipal Regulation of Structures, the city further asserts full 
authority to exercise its right to remedy under all provisions of the Texas Local Government Code, 
including, but not limited to, Chapter 54, Subchapter B, Municipal Health and Safety Ordinances, in 
prosecution of civil suits for enforcement, injunctive relief, and civil penalties to remedy conditions of 
public concern described in this article.  

(Ord. No. 2002-39, § 3, 11-5-02)  

























CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
October 28, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Council Member Staggered Terms and Election Position Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss City Council staggered terms and the order of positions for election, and take action 
as necessary to direct staff. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A  

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. City Charter Excerpt – Section 3.01 
2. Presentation  - Staggered Election Terms 
3. Timeline – Staggered Election Terms 
4. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 08-26-14 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 

Scott Tschirhart/rl 
 
Scott Tschirhart 
City Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been included to allow City Council to hold discussion regarding staggered terms and the 
order of positions for election. 
 



 
 

PART I – THE CHARTER 
ARTICLE III. – THE CITY COUNCIL          
 
SEC. 3.01. - NUMBER, SELECTION AND TERM.  
 

The legislative and governing body of the city shall consist of the mayor and six (6) council members 
and shall be known as the "City Council of the City of Rosenberg."  

(a) The mayor and two members of the city council shall be elected from the city at large. 

(b) The mayor shall be the presiding officer of the city council and shall be recognized as the head 
of city government for all ceremonial purposes and by the government [governor] for purposes 
of military law but shall have no regular administrative duties. The mayor shall be entitled to 
vote on all matters under consideration by the city council.  

(c) The mayor and six (6) council members, including two (2) at large council members and four (4) 
council members elected by districts shall be elected to two-year terms. The mayor and (2) 
council members shall be elected at-large in odd number years. The two (2) at-large council 
members positions shall be respectively designated as Position 1 and Position 2. The remaining 
four (4) council members shall be elected by districts, designated as Districts one (1), two (2), 
three (3) and four (4), in even numbered years.  

At the general election in May 2015, the four (4) designated district positions, one (1), two (2), 
three (3), and four (4) shall be placed on the ballot for election for a one-year term. The two (2) 
at-large council member positions and the position of mayor shall be placed on the ballot for 
election to two-year terms. At the City general election May 2016, the district positions 
designated as Districts one (1), two (2), three (3) and four (4) shall be placed on the ballot for 
two-year terms. At the City general election May 2017, the two (2) at-large council member 
positions and the position of mayor shall be elected to two-year terms.  

All positions shall be elected to two-year terms after the foregoing provisions have been 
effected.  

(d) The four (4) members of the city council elected by districts shall be elected from districts which 
shall be designated Districts one (1), two (2), three (3) and four (4). The area or territory 
includable in the district shall be adjusted from time to time or reconfigured as the city may 
annex or de-annex territory or area within the city. A legal description of all property to be 
includable in any of the several districts shall be on file in the office of the city secretary of the 
City of Rosenberg.  

(Ord. No. 60-4, § 1, 9-6-60; Ord. No. 85-8, § 1, 6-18-85; Ord. No. 87-54, § 4, 8-10-87; Ord. No. 96-
44, 12-3-96; Ord. No. 97-07, § 1, 1-21-97; Ord. No. 2013-10, § 3, 2-19-13 ; Ord. No. 2013-26, § 1, 5-
21-13 )  



City of RosenbergCity of Rosenberg

Staggered Election Terms

DNRBHZDNRBHZ

By: Scott Tschirhart



District 1
District 2

Current
                2015            2016            2017            2018           2019      

District 2
District 3
District 4
At Large 1
At Large 2
MayorMayor

Note:  The color coding of this exhibit is for the purpose of distinguishing between potential 
terms in office that would result from a Charter amendment.



District 1
District 2
District 3

Current
                 2015            2016            2017            2018           2019      

District 1
District 2
District 3

3 Year Terms
                2015            2016            2017            2018            2019           2020

District 4
At Large 1
At Large 2
Mayor

District 4
At Large 1
At Large 2
Mayor



District 1
District 2
District 3

Current
                 2015            2016            2017            2018           2019      

District 1
District 2
District 3

3 Year Terms
                2015            2016            2017            2018            2019           2020

District 4
At Large 1
At Large 2
Mayor

District 4
At Large 1
At Large 2
Mayor

Swap
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

District 1
District 2
District 3
District 4
At Large 1

                 2015           2016             2017             2018          2019           2020             2021           2022              2023

At Large 1
At Large 2
Mayor





PAGE 2 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 26, 2014
***DRAFT***

Council. We did three outreach sites this year at the schools and those not at the schools are serving 
all Rosenberg children.

� Jess Stewart provided an overview of the present program and the future programs. He outlined each 
school and how many children are served at each.

� The City of Rosenberg donates $10,000 to the two sites within the City. It takes $305,000 to fund 1585 
children in the programs.

� Council thanked Darren McCarthy for presenting this as partnership to the City and thanked Jess 
Stewart for the presentation.

� No action was taken on the item.

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS COUNCIL MEMBER TERM LIMITS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO 
DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item was requested to provide City Council the opportunity to discuss 
potential term limits for the Mayor and Council Members.

Key discussion points:
� Councilor McConathy stated she added the item to give Council Members the opportunity to discuss 

term limits. To provide some direction for the discussion there are two key points we should consider 
as we open this up. One is the term duration as well as the maximum years a Council Member can 
serve in that term. The former Council including Mayor, Councilors Benton, Grigar and she talked 
about two years, three years and four years as a term and also the duration whether that means two 
or three – two year terms or two-three year terms or two-four year terms. We are starting fresh with a 
new Council. She asked Council to keep those two points in mind during discussion on what we want 
term limits to look like as we present it to the voters in May as a Charter change.

� Councilor Euton asked if we need to spell it out ahead of time or do we want to leave it open like 
previously on the staggered terms but the “how to” was not part of the amendment that the voters 
saw. 

� Scott Tschirhart, Attorney for the City explained that is a bit of a misconception. On February 19, 
2013, Council passed Ordinance 2013-10 that laid out specifically which Council positions would be 
staggered and how it would be staggered. The voters saw a caption which is typical in a Charter 
election. The caption tells them what this is going to do. If you have a lot of amendments it could be 
confusing for a voter. The City generally publishes what it will do to the Charter and in this case it was 
published in the newspaper in English and Spanish and on the website.  A copy of what this 
amendment was going to do was mailed with the water bills to educate the public. The Ordinance was 
passed prior to the Charter election.

� Councilor Euton asked if we change terms to three years what will that do to our staggering?
� Scott Tschirhart said it complicates things. The election that comes up in May has to follow the rules in 

the Charter currently. We will have some terms expiring one year out and some terms two years out. 
To go to a three year term we can make that work but it will require a Charter amendment to balance 
everything out. It would have to be approved by the voters.

� Councilor Euton said she is in favor of three year terms but she feels it would be too confusing to the 
voters. Two years is simpler and a four year maximum term in one position should be the limit.

� Councilor Pena stated it is confusing and we already have the staggered years. District 1, 2, 3 and 4 
have to run one year concurrently. It is two years to catch up the at-large and mayor. He agrees with 
Councilor Euton. He thinks a three year term would be a good gauge. He suggested two – three year 
terms. He favors the three year term but if it stays at two, then he favors two – two year terms.

� Councilor Grigar stated he thinks we already have term limits and that’s an election every two years. 
Term limits are good in certain cities. He does not think it is a good thing for Rosenberg at this time 
until we grow. It is hard to get volunteers for committees. He is not for term limits at this time.

� Councilor Bolf agreed with Councilor Grigar to a point. We do have elections but when people are 
there a long time they will not step-up and run against an incumbent. She would suggest three – three 
year terms.

� Councilor Benton stated he believes in term limits. He likes the four – two year terms. This is a Charter 
change issue and a Charter change committee should see what the voters want.

� Councilor McConathy stated in the previous discussion we complicated it in separating the mayor 
position from Council positions and staggering and terming it in that fashion. It sounds like the 
consensus is for term limits, that it would be broad across all positions and that the term would apply 
to everyone equally. She favors the three year. It will require another Charter change but we are going 
to be creating a Charter change by implementing this proposal.  When we had the discussion about 
staggered terms we talked about the complication at the ballot in helping the voters to understand 
what staggering meant versus a term limit. It was decided at that time to separate staggering from the 
term limits. The voters decided for staggering so now if we stand by the three year term then we need

cynthias
Rectangle



PAGE 3 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 26, 2014
***DRAFT***

to make the staggering work with that term limit. You can’t discuss one without impacting the other. 
She prefers the three year with a maximum of two terms.

� Councilor Bolf said it would need to be position specific. She would agree with the two – three year 
terms if no one else went with the three – three year terms.

� Mayor Morales stated going back to the last Council, he proposed three year terms. He is not opposed 
to having three year terms. We weren’t sure of the term limits at that time. He agrees with what 
Councilor Grigar says but he doesn’t have a problem with what the voters want. The voters make that 
decision. If you go back to the minutes several years ago, he proposed three year terms but no one 
agreed to it.

� At this point we need to form a Charter Review Committee to determine which items will be on the 
Charter.

� Councilor Grigar commented that he thinks there needs to be a standing Charter Review Committee 
that looks at the Charter every two years because you can only change the Charter every two years. 
The standing committee needs to be formed and look at all of the Charter in detail, taking it a little at a 
time with the most important areas and add that to a referendum every two years.

� Mayor Morales asked how this committee would be made up.
� Councilor Pena stated since there has been a committee we need to move on this term limit and get it 

done. If we do the three – two year terms move forward with it. He agrees that a committee would be 
good that could look at other items as they come up, but feels we should move on the term limit item 
now.

� Councilor McConathy stated in order to form a committee we would have to set aside some budget 
funds for staff and those meetings. She suggested we look at adding dollars to our budget this year or 
maybe next year so the committee can be formulated and begin work to scrub the Charter as a whole.

� Joyce Vasut recommended that if we are going to change the budget we first pass our FY2015 budget 
next week and then we can come back with a budget adjustment in the future.

� Mayor Morales asked legal counsel how we would work out the staggering we have in place in 2015 
and if we go to three year terms going forward?

� Scott Tschirhart stated it will be complicated. Two year terms are what the staggering is predicated on 
and it works well that way. A three year term can complicate this pretty dramatically. A Charter 
amendment can change things in a perspective but it will not change anything coming up in the May 
elections. It could change the next election cycle.

� Mayor Morales stated presently it reads you have the Mayor and the two At Large positions that will 
have two year terms and then the District seats have a one year term. Starting in 2016 the Districts 
would be for three years.

� Scott Tschirhart stated that is a potential way to do it but that would be the earliest you could affect a 
City election - May 2016. If you did a Charter amendment to go to three year terms you could start 
those three year terms at that time in 2016. Term limits would have to be prospective and it would not 
count anything that has already been served. 

� Mayor Morales stated there is a general consensus of wanting to move forward with two – three year 
terms. Legal counsel needs to come back to Council with what that Charter change would be.

� Scott Tschirhart stated there is another issue that comes up with this. The Texas Constitution says no 
city charter shall be altered, amended or repealed oftener than every two years. There is an Attorney 
General opinion out there that says – you have an election on May 9th of this particular year and then 
two years later the election is to be held on May 4th that that is too short and you can’t do the two 
years that way. Our office takes the opinion that the charter amendment doesn’t take place until the 
city adopts it and it could be adjusted further out. But, that Texas Attorney General opinion is out 
there. In this case, the second Saturday in May is May 9th which would be before the May 11th election 
less than two full years we had in May 2013. It could be declared that it is oftener than two years
because of these few days that would make is less than two years.

� Mayor Morales said so the change could not happen until May 2016. 
� Scott Tschirhart stated it is possible or there could be a special election. There is a variety of ways we 

could work it out. He wanted to make Council aware that there is a potential we may not be able to do 
it at the May 2015 election to change the charter again.

� Legal counsel will bring it back to Council to be discussed and voted on.
� Councilor Grigar stated since the charter can’t be changed except every two years we will miss the 

boat if there are other changes that need to be made. Could staff research to see if there are any 
important issues that may need to be added to that?

� Scott Tschirhart stated it does not work that way, it’s just that we can’t amend it oftener than every two 
years. He suggested that at any charter election we try to handle as much as we can identify at the 
same time because it does change the constitution of the City.

� Robert Gracia stated staff will check on that.

cynthias
Rectangle



PAGE 4 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 26, 2014
***DRAFT***

� No action was taken on the item.

3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY COUNCIL STAGGERED TERMS AND THE ORDER OF POSITIONS FOR 
ELECTION, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item was requested to provide City Council an opportunity to discuss 
staggered terms and the order of positions for election for the Mayor and Council Members.

Key discussion points:
� Councilor Benton stated his concern is eventual lower voter turnout with the way these staggered 

terms are setup now. He thinks it would be beneficial when we go through this process to look at that. 
He feels it would be beneficial to have at least one at-large position in every election. It would be good 
to have a committee of citizens look at this and make suggestions.

� Scott Tschirhart stated he was asked to research this and check on how it came to be that an 
ordinance had changed the charter. In looking at Ordinance 2013-10 this is Proposition 2. Staff 
provided Council a copy. On the second page under Proposition 2 you see the caption that appeared 
on the charter election and underneath you see what the strikeout would have been changing Section 
C and what was added to Section C. This is what was approved by the voters. This was done by 
Ordinance on February 19, 2013 to be set before the voters in the 2013 May election. 

� Councilor Benton stated for clarification the verbiage in C was not on the ballot. He said it was not 
approved by the voters but the Proposition was.

� Scott Tschirhart stated that is correct. The Proposition was approved by the voters.
� Mayor Morales stated the information was out there to the voters prior to the Proposition.
� Scott Tschirhart stated when the Proposition was passed that carried over and was placed into the 

Charter. The language is identical to what was in Proposition 2 that came out of this particular 
ordinance. That is why there is a reference to the Ordinance in the Charter. The Ordinance didn’t 
modify the Charter it was the will of the voters that modified the Charter. 

� Mayor Morales stated we would have to devise a plan because in 2015 it will be three at-large 
positions for two years and the districts for one year.

� Scott Tschirhart said it would be a complex way of going about it but we could figure out a way to do it. 
An elected official doesn’t have a property right in their elected office so we don’t have those kinds of 
issues to deal with. If we wanted to change that around and take at-large positions, it would be a 
complicated process because you would have to setup some at large positions with staggered to 
make it work out, but it can be done.

� Mayor Morales stated that all of Sugar Land’s At-Large positions are at one time and then the districts 
at another time. He does not have a problem with it but how do you derive that?

� Scott Tschirhart stated we need to consider how this affects us from potential litigation standpoint from 
the Voting Rights Act because we had to go to geographical districts for that purpose. That analysis 
will have to be a part of this program because we don’t want to draw another voting rights suit.

� Mayor Morales stated he had to deal with LULAC on this last staggered terms. We would have to 
involve LULAC as well in this. A lot of this was based on what they wanted too.

� Mayor Morales stated we have a request for three year terms with a limit of six years and wanting to 
move an at-large position into the staggering mix and engage LULAC in this entire process.

� Councilor Euton stated if we mix it she would suggest that District 1 be moved with the mayor and at-
large because they had the lowest percentage of voter turn out.

� Mayor Morales stated that is a good suggestion.
� Scott Tschirhart stated they can start on it but it is not something that he can come back to Council 

with until another workshop and not at the next Council meeting.
� No action was taken on the item.

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 6-367 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES PROVIDING RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE PAINTING OF STREET 
NUMBERS ON CURBS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: On April 01, 2014, and April 22, 2014, City Council held discussions regarding the 
potential of amending the City’s curb-painting regulations to include the Texas flag.

This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to discuss the potential 
amendment of the rules and regulations governing the painting of street numbers on curbs.  You will find a 
copy of the current Code Section 6-367 which was included in the agenda packet.

Key discussion points:
� Councilor McConathy stated this was an item previously discussed and we reached a consensus that 

this was something we should bring back after budget discussions. We are talking about amending 

cynthias
Rectangle



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 3 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	City Council Workshop Agenda - 10-28-14
	1 - Dangerous Buildings Ordinance Discussion
	Code of Ordinances Excerpt - Chapter 6, Article IX. - Dangerous Buildings
	Texas Municipal League - Substandard Structures after City of Dallas v. Stewart - 02-16-12

	2 - Council Member Staggered Terms and Election Position Discussion
	City Charter Excerpt - Section 3.01
	Presentation - Staggered Election Terms
	Timeline - Staggered Election Terms
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 08-26-14

	3 - Adjournment

